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OFAC EU
UK

OFAC EU UK

OFAC EU UK

CIMA CIMA

TIA

Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier
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2023
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1.17
3,750 AEOI
2,000
100.00
100.00

0.01
3,750

0.100

AEOI 2,000

0.02

0.01
3,750
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2023
20.315 15.315
2038 20 15
15.315
2038 15
20.315
15.315 2038 20 15
20.315 15.315

2038 20 15
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15.315
2038
15

20.315
15.315 2038 20 15

2023

81 50

US 1GA 100
CRS US IGA UK IGA AEOI
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CRS AEOI
AEOI TIA US IGA CRS
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CRS
US IGA us
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2023
13,609,919.40 98.72
176,488.82 1.28
13,786,408.22
2,062 100.00

(2023

Goldman Sachs FP
2018

1.730

2024/4/30 |13,629,000 |13,511,791 |13,609,919 |98.72

2023

2023
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2023

(2020 31 19,696,133.62 2,946,147,667 97.04 14,515
2021 31 18,195,683.46 2,721,710,332 106.44 15,921
2022 31 15,551,001.60 2,326,118,819 99.49 14,882
2023 31 13,855,296.95 2,072,475,318 99.34 14,859
2022 10 14,161,475.61 2,118,273,522 96.58 14,446
11 14,158,082.23 2,117,765,940 97.69 14,612
12 14,149,833.97 2,116,532,165 98.13 14,678
2023 14,211,677.82 2,125,782,768 98.76 14,773
14,143,515.51 2,115,587,050 98.77 14,774
14,169,380.21 2,119,455,892 99.21 14,840
13,869,326.68 2,074,573,885 99.37 14,864
13,855,296.95 2,072,475,318 99.34 14,859
13,858,945.35 2,073,021,045 99.58 14,895
13,881,396.93 2,076,379,353 99.96 14,952
13,854,844 .44 2,072,407,631 100.35 15,010
13,786,408.22 2,062,170,942 100.58 15,045

0.49 73

0.83 124

0.49 73

0.49 73
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2.47

10.54

6.07

0.34

100 x
100.00

210,962 8,000 202,962
(210,962) (8,000) (202,962)
0 32,017 170,945
) (32,017) (170,945)
0 14,651 156,294
()] (14,651) (156,294)
0 16,827 139,467
) (16,827) (139,467)
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Lux-Fund-Business@mizuho. lu
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FRA

FRA

CIMA

DPA
DPA

DPA
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DPA
DPA

2019 15
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Eurex TMX
Nasdaq OMX Nordic
12 24
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14

10

Eurex TMX
Nasdag OMX Nordic
12 24
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2024 10

2020

Title

10
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60

90
90

60
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131

23 103

2023
149.58
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2023 31

2023 31 2022 31
338,339 50,609 322,607 48,256
13,634,614 2,039,466 15,355,624 2,296,894
13,972,953 2,090,074 15,678,231 2,345,150
13,679,980 2,046,251 15,329,927 2,293,050
175,318 26,224 221,074 33,068
13,855,298 2,072,475 15,551,001 2,326,119
31,709 4,743 36,044 5,391
19,362 2,896 27,618 4,131
17,518 2,620 19,133 2,862
22,341 3,342 17,931 2,682
13,484 2,017 13,638 2,040
3,013 451 5,200 778
2,905 435 3,467 519
2,507 375 2,666 399
4,816 720 1,533 229
117,655 17,599 127,230 19,031
13,972,953 2,090,074 15,678,231 2,345,150

2023 29

2023 29
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2023 31
2023 31 2022 31
249,280 37,287 274,568 41,070
(54,468) (8,147)  (1,253,257) (187,462)
(32,879) (4,918) 64,786 9,691
161,933 24,222 (913,903) (136,702)
29,042 4,344 19,412 2,904
29,642 4,434 32,891 4,920
16,483 2,466 21,090 3,155
14,939 2,235 16,431 2,458
22,013 3,293 18,002 2,693
15,030 2,248 12,338 1,846
3,013 451 4,650 696
4,224 632 4,628 692
4,915 735 4,489 671
139,301 20,837 133,931 20,033
22,632 3,385 (1,047,834) (156,735)
22,632 3,385 (1,047,834) (156,735)
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2022

2023

31

31

31
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2023 31

16,848,615 2,520,216 1,347,068 201,494 18,195,683 2,721,710

(1,518,688) (227,165) - - (1,518,688) (227,165)
- - (78,160) (11,691) (78,160) (11,691)
- - (1,047,834) (156,735) (1,047,834) (156,735)

15,329,927 2,293,050 221,074 33,068 15,551,001 2,326,119

(1,649,947) (246,799) - - (1,649,947) (246,799)
- - (68,388) (10,229) (68,388) (10,229)
- - 22,632 3,385 22,632 3,385

13,679,980 2,046,251 175,318 26,224 13,855,298 2,072,475
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2023 31
2023 31 2022 31
22,632 3,385  (1,047,834) (156,735)
1,633,663 244,363 1,515,204 226,644
32,879 4,918 (64,786) (9,691)
54,468 8,147 1,253,257 187,462
(4,335) (648) (36,930) (5.,524)
(8,256) (1,235) 4,318 646
(1,615) (242) (3,617) (541)
4,410 660 2 0
(154) (23) (2,727) (408)
(2,187) (327) (1,023) (153)
(562) (84) (681) (102)
(159) (24) (488) (73)
3,283 491 467) (70)
1,734,067 259,382 1,614,228 241,456

(1,649,947) (246,799)  (1,518,688) (227,165)

(68,388) (10,229) (78,160) (11,691)
(1,718,335) (257,029)  (1,596,848) (238,857)
15,732 2,353 17,380 2,600
322,607 48,256 305,227 45,656
338,339 50,609 322,607 48,256
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2023 31

2011 29
2019 26
2011 15 KY1-1107
25 694
2019 15
96
2024 10
2024 10 2023 31
2022
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2023 31

2023 31

2009
32
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2023 31 2022 31
13,749,727 13,634,614 15,416,270 15,355,624
2023 31 2024 30 2022 2024 30 1.73 2022
1.73 0.00 2022 0.00
2011 29 2019 12
0.01 3,750
2011
29 2019 12
0.01 3,750
2011 2019
19
0.10
20,000 AEOI 2,000
2022 20
0.10
2011 2019
26
0.50
10
60
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2011 2019 19
0.02
2019 12
0.03
2019 12
0.50
10 100
2019 23
2023 31 2022 31
156,294 170,945
(16,827) (14,651)
139,467 156,294
99.34 99.49
2023 31 13,855,297 2022
15,551,001
2023 31 68,388 2022 78,160
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2018
2023
31 2023
31 10
1,363,461 2022 1,535,562 2023 31
10 1,363,461 2022
1,535,562
2018
2023 31 25
11,095 2022 71,041
25 55,476 2022 72,656
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4.5 12

2018
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2023 31 2022 31
13,634,614 100.00 15,355,624 100.00
13,634,614 100.00 15,355,624 100.00

12

1970
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2023 2022 31

2023 2022 31

2022 2023 31

2023 31 2022 31
15,355,624 18,059,299
(1,633,663) (1,515,205)
(87,347) (1,188,470)
13,634,614 15,355,624
(115,113) (60, 646)
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2023 31

5.3 7.0
13,634,614

2022 31

5.3 7.0
15,355,624

2018
96
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31

31
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338,339 338,339
13,634,614 13,634,614

338,339 13,634,614 13,972,953
31,709 31,709
19,362 19,362
17,518 17,518
2,905 2,905
13,484 13,484
22,341 22,341
3,013 3,013
2,507 2,507
4,816 4,816
13,855,298 13,855,298
13,972,953 13,972,953
322,607 322,607
15,355,624 15,355,624

322,607 15,355,624 15,678,231
36,044 36,044
27,618 27,618
19,133 19,133
17,931 17,931
13,638 13,638
5,200 5,200
3,467 3,467
2,666 2,666
1,533 1,533
15,551,001 15,551,001
15,678,231 15,678,231
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139,773
2023 29
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2023 31

Goldman Sachs FP 2018, 1.73000%

13,869,000 2024 30 13,749,727 13,634,614 98.40
13,749,727 13,634,614 98.40

13,749,727 13,634,614 98.40

220,684 1.60

13,855,298 100.00
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LSD PRIME ONE FUND (S} 201904
ASERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

STATEMENT OF FINANCILAL POSITION
AS AT MAY 31, 2023
(Expressed in United States dollars)

MEry 31,2023 My 31,2022
Assets
Cash and eash ﬁqlliv#len!s ﬂ\"ﬂlnx 2and ?]- s 338339 s 32607
Fevmncinl assets at far value through profit or loss (Motes 3 and T) 13,634,614 15,355,624
Total assets 13,972,953 15.678.231
Erpuity (Note 5)
Pawd-m capital 13,675 %50 15329927
Retained eamings 175318 X074
Total equity 13,855 298 15 551,001
Liahilities
Investmenl manag ement fee p:.:.-ahle f}{nted’} 31,700 A6,044
Audit fee payable 19,362 17618
Admmistration fee payable {(Mote 4) 17.518 15,133
Trustee fee pavable (Mote 43 22341 17431
Manager fee pavable (MNote 4) 13,454 13,638
Agent fee payable (Note 4) 303 5, M)
Custody fee payable (Mote 4) 2,505 3467
Dristributor fee payable (Mote ) 2507 206068
rher fee puyahle 4816 1,533
Taotal liabilities 117.655 127,330
Total equlty and laillties SN L I S 1151

Approved for issuance on behalfl of FirstCaribbean International Bank ansd Trust Company (Cayman) Lanited, nat in
itz mvdividual capacity bt zolely as Trustee to USD Prime One Fund (5Y) 2019-04, a series trust of DIAM Cavman
Trust by:

SASTRY DOOKHY Drate: August 29, 2023

BOMMIE CUTHBERT

Approved for issuance cn behalf of Queenseate Bank and Trust Company Lid., mot i its individual capacity but
solely as Manager to USD Prame One Fund (57 2009-04, a senes trust of DEIAM Cayrman Trust by

EARLA BODDEN Drate: August 29, 2023

SINEAD WAGNER

The accompanying nodes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Sds
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USD PRIME ONE FUND (5Y) 201904
ASERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

STATEMENT OF COMPR EHEMSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2023

(Expressed in Umated States dollars)

For the For the
vear ended yoear ended
Wy 31, 2023 My 31, 2022

Investmend i ncome {losses)
Interest from fmancial assets at far value through profit or loss 5 45RO i 274,568
et change m unrealised apprecmtion/{deprecmtion) on financal

agsets al fair value through profit or loss (54, 4068) (1.253.25T)
et realized gains on fmancial assets at far vale through profit

or boss (3LETH 4, T8G

et inves iment Tncome {losses) 161,933 (913,5903)
Expenses
Investment management fee (MNote 4) Haar 19412
Distributor fee (Mote 4) Hodr iraw
Anclit fee 16483 11,090
Adrmistration fiee (Mote 4) 14,5939 le 431
Trustee fee (MNote 4) L0013 18002
Manager fee (Mote 4) 15,030 12338
Agent fee (Mote 4) 3013 4,650
Custody fee (MNote 4) 4,204 4,628
Crher fees 495 4489

Total operating expenses 135,301 133.931

Met operating income {losses) XX 632 (1.047.834)

Total comprehensive incone/ (losses) attributable o

uniihedcher 5 2%531 5 ;1.‘&1?'33-42

The accompanying nodes are an integral part of these financial statements.

i
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ASERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2023

(Expressed in United States dollars)

Balance as at May 31, 2021

Redmgption of redeemable units
Dristabutions to unitholder (Note 6)
Total comprehensive gams/{lossesz) for the year

Balance as at Moy 31, 2022

Fedmption of redeemuble units
DristrAbutions to unitholder (MNote 6)

Total congprehensive gans{losses) for the year

Balance as at May 31, 2003

M
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Pald-in Capl tal Retained Earnings Total

5 16,848,615 5 1,347 0638 18,195,653
(1,51 8.688) % (1518655}

. 78,1600 {78, 160}

- {1,047 8343 (1,047, 834)

5 15329527 8 220,074 15,551,000
(1635547 ' (1,045, 547)

] {65, 583) {68,388

- 22652 LrGE2

5 13,679,980 5 175318 13,855,208

The accompanmy ing notes are an intezral pant of these financial statements.

=
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V5D PRIME ONE FUND (S) 2019-04
ASERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2023

(Expressed in United States dollars)

For the For the
yieur ended yeur ended
May 51, 2023 May 31, 2022
Cowh Mows from operwsting st es
‘Total comprehensive income/(logs es) attributable to Unigholder 5 11632 5 {1,047 534)
Adpstments to reconcile total compreh ens ve moome{losees) abtributable
to Unitholder to net cnsh used m opernt ng nctrvdies:
Proceeds from sale of financial assets af fair valie through profit or es 1633663 1,515,204
Net realized 3r|ci;r|.x an fmancml assels af for valoe ll:lnugh pruﬁ or loss F2ETY {68, TRG)
MNet change m unrealsed depreciation on financml assets af
fadr vahoe though profi or loss RE R 1,253,257
Changes m nssets wnd linbildes related to operations:
Decrense in mvestment management fee payable {4,335} {36,930
(Decrense)Incrense m mudit fee puyuble (8,256} 4318
Decrense in adminstration fee payable {L615) (3,617T)
Increase in trustes fee payable 4410 Fl
Increase{Tecrease ) m manager fee payahle {154} )]
Decrense in agent fee payabh {2,157y (1023
Decrense in custody fee payable (562 (651}
Decremse n distibutor fee pavable (159 {4EE)
Inerease/(Decrease) n other fee payvable 3 {467}
Mot cash prosided by/{us od in) operating sctivities 1734 067 1,614,228
Cash Mows from Anancing sctdthes
Fedemptions paid to Unitholder (1,649,947 (1.518.658)
Distrbutions paid te Unitholder (68 38R} {78, 160)
Mot cash (msed in) provided by Onancing sctvties (1718335} {L5H5,848)
Mt change m cash and cash equivalents 13782 17380
Cash and cash equivaknts ai begnning of year 3x1607 305,227
Cash and cosh equivalents at end of year 5 33350 5 312607

The accompanying nodes are an integral part of these financial statements.

«Ta
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LUSD PRIME ONE FUND (5Y) 2015904
ASERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

L Organization

DIAM Cavenan Trust (the “Trust™) is an exomgied unit trust established wder the laws of the Cayman [skinds pursuant
o declaration of trust (the “Trest Deed ™) dated June 29, 2011, USD Prime One Fund (5% 201 904 {the “Class Fund™)
is @ series trust of the Trust which commenced its operations on April 26, 2009, The Trust is licensed under the
Cayman Islands Mutual Funds Actumder section 4 (13(a) with effect from July 15, 201 1. The Trust’s place of business
i5 25 Main Street, PO, Box 6%, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-1 107, Cayman [slands,

The Trest filed a securities registration statemnent on March 15, 2009 on behalf of the Class Fund pursuant to the
Financial Instrument Exchange Law with the Director of the Kanto Local Finance Buresu and a registration statement
prrsaant o the Investment Trust Law with the Commmissioner of the Financial Services Agency.

The investment objective of the Class Fund is to seek stable income and stable appreciation of the Class Fund's assets.
The Class Fund will obtam exposure to the Goldman Sachs 1-Select TV Volatility Target Series 96 USD Excess Eetumn
Strategy, aniles-based mdexed srategy developed by Goldman Sachs Imemational as strategy sponsor.

The termination date of the fund is Mary 10, 2024,

2 Slgnin accounti

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set ol below, These
policies have been consistently applied to all the vears presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation: The fnancial statements of the Class Fund have been prepared m accordance wath International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board, The financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost comvention, as madified by the revaluation of financesl assets
and fmancial labilities ot far value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial saternents m confiormity with IFRES requires the use of certain critical accounting
cstimutes. [t also requires the Trustee to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Class Fund’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the financial statements are disclosed = Notes 2, 7and &

As disclosed mMote |, the Class Fund will be termanated on Moy 10, 2024, As a result, the financial statements
havie been prepared using a liquidation basas of accounting for the vear ended Mayv 31, 2023, In this instance, the
liguidation basis does pot result in amy material adjustments to the camy ing amomnts of asselz and liabilities of the
Class Fundl, prepared in accordance with [IFRS.

All referenices to net assets throughout this document refer to equity unless otherwise stated. Net assels per unit
mformation a= disclosed in MNote 3 has been determined as total assels less total liabilities divided by the number of
outstanding units of each class of participating wunss.

(&) Standards and amendments to existing standards effective June 1, 2022

There are no standards, amendments to standards or imerpretations that are effective for anmual periods beginning on
Jume 1, 2022 that have a material effect on the financial statements of the Class Fumd.

(b Mew standards, amendments and mtepretations issased but not effective for the financial year begimnmg June 1,
2022 and net early adopted
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USD PRIME QNE FUND (5Y) 201904
ASERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Significant sceounting policies {continued)

Basis of preparation {continued)

A number of new standards, amendments (o standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning
after Jume 1, 2022, and have not been early adopted in preparing these financial statements, Mone of these are expected
to have a material effect on the financial statemnents of the Class Fund.

¥ | : The Class Fund elassifies its investments based
o both the Class Fund's busmess model for managing those finamcial aseets amd the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial sssets. The portfolio of financel assets is managed, and performance is evaluated ona
fair value basis, The Class Fund 15 primanly focused on fair value nformation and uses that mformation 1o assess the
assets” performance and (o make decizions, The contractual cagh Mows of the Class Fund's debt securnties are solely
principal and interest, however, these securities are neither held for the purpose of collecting contractual cash flows
nor held both for collecting contractual cash flows and for sale. The collection of contractual cash flows i only
incidental to achieving the Class Fund’s business model's objective. Consequenily, all investimens are measured at
Fair value through profit of loss.

Presmums and discounts are amortized on an effective interest vield method to the maturty of the investments (o
which they relate,

Firai: ial assetz 8 fair value wough profit of less are those that are managed awl ther performance evaluated oa
fair value basis in accordance with the Trust’s documented investment strategy. The Trust's policy is for the
Investment Manager (Mote 45 to evaluste the information aboat these financial assets and lisbilities on a fair value
basis, together with other related financial mformation, for the purposes of makimg v estment management des isions,

Cash and cash equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents include all cash on demand and on short notice and all deposits
with criginal terms fo maturity of not more than 3 months. All of the Class Fund®s cash and cash equivalemt balance
as al May 31, 2023 is maintained with the Custodizn of the Class Fund (Node 4).

Expenses: Expenses are accounted for on an accrual basis.

oam_| i loss: Interest is recogmised on a time-proportionate
Dasis usmg the ﬂmme naﬂ'eﬂt mﬂimd. [nl:mi li'ml ﬁmn:lnl assels ot fair value theough profit or loss includes
interest from debt securities.

Lncome taxes: Under the curent laws of the Cavinam Islands, there ane io income, estate, transfer sales o other
Cayrman 1skand taxes pavable by the Class Fund, As a result, no provision for income taxes has been made in the
financial statesnenta.

Al May 31, 2023, the Class Fund has measured its tax liabilities with respect to foreign capital gains taxes at nil
However, there is a risk that foreign tax authorities wall begm seeking 1o collect taxes on capital gains camed by the
Clags Fund, withoat giving sy prioe waming and pessibly, on a retrospective basis, Any refrospective enforcement
may result inoa substantial loss to the Class Fund,

Distributions: Distrbutions to the unithelder are meluded in the Statement of Changes m Equity when they are
approved by the Trestes (Note 6),

Translation of forelgn currency amounis: Assets and liabilities denominated in currencies ofher than the United
States Dollar are translated 4t the rale of exchange prevanling on the day of valuation. Foreign currency mcomie and

expenditure items are converted at the rate of exchange on the date of the ransaction, Gains and losses on foreign
cugrencies are included m the Statement of Comprebensive Income in the peried in which they anise. The Class Fund

0.
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USD PRIME QNE FUND (5Y) 201904
ASERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Significant sceounting policies {continued)

Translation of foreign ourrency amounts {continmed)

does not isolate that pertion of the resulis of operations resuliing from changes in foreign exchange rates on
investments from flectuations arizing from changes in market prices of securities held. Such fluctuations are
inchuded with the net realised and unrealised gam/{boss) on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,

Fustional aid presentalon currency: tems inebided m the Class Fund's Gnasscial statenments are meaaged using
the United States dollar (the “functional currency™), as the Clazs Fund only invests im one security denominated in
Unitesd States dollar. In sddition, the Class Fund has adopted the United States dollar as its presentation currency.

Participating Units: The Class Fund jssues units (Note 53 which are redeemable at the holder's aption but are
classified as equity in accordance with the IAS 32 amendment in 2009, Ay distribution on such units is recognized
in the Staternent of Changes in Equity. The Participating Units can be put back tothe Class Fund by the holder at any
business diry for cazh equal 10 a proporizonate share of the Class Fund’s net asseis.

3. Finmncial assets o fair value feough profit or loss

Financial as=scts at fair vahue through profit or loss are comprised of:

My 31, 2023 MEay 31, 2022
Agmwrils ed Cosi Fadr Valiie Aviner Hsed Cosi Flalr Value
Structured MNote 5 13,748,727 & 1L63614 5 15341627 5 15355624

Investment has a maturity date of April 30, 2024 (2022 Apnl 30, 2024 ) and foced interest rabe of 1.7 3% (2022: 1.73%)
as of May 31, 2023, During the vear, vanable mterest of 00096 (2022:0.002%) has bean received.

Sl gnificant s mind

Trustee

FirstCaribbean Internatromal Bank and Trost Company (Cayman Linited is the Trustee of the Trst pursuant to the
Tt Deed doted Jume 29, 2001 (a3 may and amended from time to time) amd the Class Fund pursusant o the
Supplemnental Trust Deed dated on March 12, 2019, The Tristee i conjunction with the Manager is responsible for
the Truet’s admimstration and management, which mchdes the responsibility for distribution and redemption of wmits
ini the Trust The Trustee and Manager have appomted Mizuho Bank (USA) to provide the day <to-diry adminisirstion
of the Class Fund.

The Trustee iz entitled to receive, out of the assets of the Class Fund, a fee at the rate of 0,01 %2 per ammum of the Fee
Amount which is calcubated by multiplymg the mitial ssue price by the mumber of units n issue al the relevant
vithuation day, subject to a quarterty minmmum fee of USS3, 750, The Trustee’s fees will be calculated and accred
daily and pavable anmually in arreass,

Manager

CQueensgate Bank and Trust Compamy Ltd. (the “Manager™) & the Manager of the Trust pursuant to the Trust Deed
dated Jupe 29, 2001 ¢as may be anended freen time te Gmed and the Class Fund pursuant (o the aipplemental Trust
Deed dsted oo March 12, 2019,
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USD PRIME ONE FUND (3Y) 201904
ASERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 Significant sgreements and transwetions (continued)

Manmager (continued)

The Manager prescribes munaganent of the Class Fund®s assets and issue and repurchase of the units of the Class
Fimd. The Manager iz enfitled 1o receive, out of the aszeis of the Class Fund, a fee at the rate of (,01%5 per armnen of the
Fee Amount, aulvject to a quarterly minamum fee of US53,750, The Manager's fee will be caleulated and accrued daily and
payable annually m amers.

Admindsiration

The Trustee and Manager on behalf of the Class Fund have entered into an agreement with Mizuho Bank (USA) dated
July 5, 2011 and amended on April 19, 2019, under which that party acts as Administrator to the Class Fund. For
providing administration services to the Class Fund, the Admmigtrator 1= entitled to receve, o of the assets of the
Clazs Fund, a fiee o the rate of (1026 per annum of the Fee Amount, The Administrator will also be entitled to a one-
time set-up fee of $20,000 and a fixed svmal fee of $2,000 for providing AEOI compliance reporting services,

On September 20, 2022, the Trustee on behalf of the Fund have entered into an agreement with Mizuho Trost &
Banking (Laembourgy 5. A, under which, that party has been appointed to act a3 Admmstrator to the Fund, For
providing admimistration services to the Class Fund, the Administrator is entitled (o receive, ot of the assels of the
Clasz Fund, a fee at the rate of 0.10%6 per annum of the Fee Amount, The Administrator's fee will be caloutated and
accrued daily and payable anmually i arrears,

Investinent manager

Agget Management One Co., Ltd., (the “Investment Manager™) has been appomted as Investiment Manager to the Trust
pursuant to the Investment Management Agreoment dated July 8, 2011 and amended on April 26, 2019, parsuant (o
which the Investment Manager 1 suthorized to supervize and direct the investment and reinvestment of assets in each
account, with full authority and at its discretion,

The Investment Manager is entitled to receive, out of the assets of the Class Fund, a fee al a rate of up to 0.50% per
anmuem of the Fee Amoaml. Such fee may be lowered depending on the Fee Amount. The Investment Manager's fee
will be caloulated and accrued daily and payable annueally in amrears, In addition, the Investment Manager will be
cntitled to receive, out of the assets of the Class Fund, a perfonnance fee equivalemt to 100 of the total payments from
ihe variable rate coupon receved for the account of ihe Class Fund, and payable armmially within 60 days after the
variable rate coupon has been declared o if carlier, on termisstion of the Class Fumd,

Custodian

Muzuhio Bank (LS A (the “Custodian™) his been sppointed as the Custodian to the Class Fund by the Trustee pursssil
to 8 custody agreemnent dated July 5, 200 1 and amended on Apnil 19, 200%. The Custoedtian is entitled to receive, out
of the assets of the Class Fund, a fee at the rate of 0.02% per annum of the Fee Amount. The Custodian is also entitbed
to a transaction fee i accordance with its nonmeal scale. The Custodian’s fee will be caloulated and aconeed daily and
pavable ammally in arears,

Agent

O March 12, 2019, the Agent Compary Agreement was entered info between Queensgate Bank and Trust Company,
Ltd. and Goldman Sachs Japan Co,, Ltd (the “Agent”™). The Agent Company Agreement is an agreement pursuant 1o
which the Agent, having been appointed by the Manager, agrees to submit ihe prospeciuses regarding the umits of the
Clazz Fumd to the Japan Secunties Dealers” Association (C“JSDA™), publicize the met asset value per unit amd submit
ihe decuments such as the financial statements and other documents to the JSDA. The Agent Company 5 enfitled to
receive, out of the assets of the Class Fund, a fee at the rate of 0.03% per annumn of the Fee Amount.  The Agent
Company's fee will be calculated and sccmed ad payvable annually in arrears,

al]=
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USD PRIME QNE FUND (5Y) 201904
ASERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Distributor

On March 12, 2009, the Units Distribution and Repurchase Agreement was entered between Cueensgate Bank and
Trust Company Lid and Daiwa Securities Co., Lid (“Daawa’™), under which Daiwa acts &= Distributor of units in
Japan asbject to terma and conditions. The Distributor is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Class fimd, a fiee
of up to 0502 per anmum of the Fee Amount which is based on the imtial issue price multiplied to the manber of
umits im issue at the relevant valuation day. The distrbutor's fees will be acorued daily and payable monthly in amears.

5 Units in ssue

Subscriptions for Units in aggregate st nod exceed USS1 lllon, The Units are subsenbed at the purchase price of
USS100 per Unit. A sales charge of up to 224, plus any applicable tax thereon, may be added to the purchase price per
Unit. The sales charge, if applicable, will be pavable to the Distributor, Following the expiry of the mnitial offer period
of April 23, 2019, additional Units will not be available for subseription,

The Units of the Class Fund are redeemable at the option of the unitholder on each dealing day al a redemplion price
equeal 1o the net assel value per unit as determmed on such dealing diy, provided that the redemption nolice has been
received by the Trustee not less thian | business davs priof to the relevant dealing day,

For ihe For ihe
vear ersled yoeur erded
My 31, 2023 My 31, 2022
Units issued ol begmnmg of year 156,294 170,945
Umits redecmed during the year (16,527} (146513
Lniits issued al end :'.ll-j.--e:.r 1394647 156,20
Met Asset Vabee per Unit 3 .34 5 A0
mnmr—

Agal May 31, 2023, the Class Fund had $13 855,207 (2022: 815,551 001} of puttable financial instruments classified
a5 Equity.

The Class Fund's capital is primarily represented by these Units, In accordance with the objectives outlined in Mote 1
and the risk management policies in Mete 7, the Class Fund endeavours Lo invest the subscriptions received from
unitholder o appropriste investments wiile muntaining sufficient quidity to meet redemptions, with such hquidity
being megmented by short-term borrowings or redemption of investments where necessary,

6, Distribution

The current distnibution policy of the Class Fund i to pay in respect of ¢ach digtribution period an anoal distribution
following each distribution record date. The Manager may declare and arrange fior the payment of distributions i aech
amounits, if ary, as shall be determimesd by the Investment Manager equivalent to the amount received from the fixed
rate coupdt plus the amotnt receivied from the vanable rate coupon. i any, afler deducting the pefammance fee. All
distribution amounts will be paid = cash on the applicable distribution pavment date,

Durmg the period ended May 31, 2023, the Class Fund declared distributions to the unithelder amounting to 568 388
(20°k2: 578,160,
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USD PRIME ONE FUND (3Y) 201904
ASERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Finsncinl risk management

Strategy in using fiancial instruments:

The Class Fund's activitics exprose it to a variety of financial nisks: market nsk (ncluding price nsk, currency risk and
interes rate risk), credit rigk and liquadity risk, The Class Fumd®s overall risk mamagement prograrmme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimisze potential adverse effects on the Class Fund's financial
performance.

All seciities mvestinents present o rizk of less of capital, The maamiim logs of capital on debl secunities i limited
to the fair valwe of these positions,

ok e
The Class Fumnd i exposed to price volatility risk, Chaseges in interest rates affect the prices of bonds and debentures,
Increase in interest rates generally causes decreases m the prices of bonds mnd debentures and therefore decreases m the
Met Asset Value per Unit. The total amount of the vaniable mte coupon varies based on the mte of retum of the reference
indes. 17 the rate of retum is negative, the variable rate coupon will be reduced to zero and the retum on the notes wall be
limited to the fived rate coupon onty, Even if the market interest rates and thee credit status of the ksuer of the notes,
Cioldman Sadss Fimncial Products 2018, does not change, if the iotal amount of the variable rate coupon & expected io
decline due to a deterioration of market conditions where the issuer finances or, due to a decrease of the rate of returm of
the reference index, the notes' price and the Met Asset Vakie per Unit wall declne.

The Investment Manager inmages the Class Find's mvestment irategy by monitorng the fluctiuation of the rate of
return of the reference index. A semsitivity analvsis has been performed to assess the impact of movements in the
miarket prices of structures motes as at May 31, 2023, If the market prices of the structured notes at May 31, 2023 had
mcreased by 102 with all other variables held constant, this would have increased net assets attnbutable to umitholder
by approxmmately 1,363,461 (2022: 51,535 562, Conversely, if the market prices of the giructure notes at May 31,
2023 had decreased by 0%, this would have decreased net assets aftributable to unitholder by approximately
51,363,461 (2022: 51,535 562).

The Investrnent Manager invests substantially all of the proceeds for the issuance of units in the strectured note issued
by a single issuer, Goldman Sachs Financial Products 2018, In the event that risks regarding the struchered notc
miatenializes, the Class Fund will be significantly affected and the Net Assel Value per Unit will decline sigmificamily,
compared to the case of investment trugls with a diversified investiment portfolio,

Interest rate risk:

The sructured note in which e assets ol the Class Fund miy be invested or o which e riles-based indexed strategy
may be exposed may be subject to price Muctuations througlieut their tenor that is, the period from the time of their
acquisition by the Investment Manager until the time of their realisation depending upon interest rate fluctuations
during such peried In general, as interest rates m the relevant country £all, a note's or other debt secunity's price will
rise, and as interest rates in the relevant country rise, a note's of other debt security s price will fall When interest rates
fluctuate, the remaining tenor of a debd security including a note may be used as an mdication of the degree of change
in the market price of such dedt secursty. All else being equal, the longer its remaining tenor, the grester the change
will be in the market price of a debt security including a note for a given movement in interest rates, The MNel Asset
Value may fhuctuate as a result of the aforem entioned changes on the basis that the assets of the Class Fund and the
rules-based indexed strategy comprise debt securities having differing terms to maturity.

The Class Fund mav be subject to a greater risk of rizsing interest rates than would normally be the case due 1o the
cusrent period of historically low rates and the effect of potential govermment fiscal policy initsatives and resuliing
miarket reaction to those initiatives. Longer-tenm debt secunities are generally more sensitive to interest rate changes.
Rising miterest rates also may lengthen the durstion of deld securiies with call features, since exercise of the call
becomes less likely as inlerest rates nse, which in turm will make the securities more =ensative to changes in interest
rates and reaull in even steeper price declines inthe event of further interest rate mcreases. [nterest rte risk may be

=13-
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LUSD PRIME ONE FUND (3Y) 201904
ASERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

NOTES T FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7 neial ri . [oatd
7 : :

increased by the Class Fund®s investment in mvverse floaters and forward commitments because of the leveraged nature
of these investments,

Dirmg periods of very low of negative mierest rates, the Class Fund mgv be unable to matitain positive retums,
Interest rates in mamy parts of the world, including the United States, are al historically low levels, Ve low or
negative interest rates may misenify interest rate nsk. Changing inderest rates, mcluding rates that fall below rero, may

have unpredictable effects on maskets, may result m heightened market volatility and may detract from the
performance of the Class Fund.

As at May 31, 2023, i the interest rate on USD-denominated assets had been lowered by 25 basis points with all other
variables held constant, the increase in ned assetz aributable o the unitholder would have been 511,093 (2022
£71,041), anising substantially frean the norease in the fair value of the debt security. If interest rates had risen by 25
basiz pointz, the decrease in net assets attribatable to the unitholder would have been 335476 (2022 §72.656)

The Class Fund has direct exposure to interest rste changes on the valuation and cash flows of its nterest-bearing
assetz and labilities. The abeve sensitivity analvss nwy o fully mdicate the total effect on the Class Fund's net
assets attributable to the unithwlder of filure movements in intorest rates.

Reference srateny rigk;

Rigks related to the referenice strategy which underlies the Class Fund's investment in the structured note inclsdes
volatility and srategy risk and dilution, The reference strategy has a volatility adustment feature which ams o
provide anotional volatlity -controlled exposure tothe imderlving strategy. This is achieved by periodically increasing
or decreasing the exposure of the relerence stralegy Lo the underlying sirategy, based on the historical realised volatiling
of thve asset over a lookback period of approximately 12 months relative to a presdetermined volatility target of 4.5%
An inerease in the realised volatility related to ihe underlying strategy might decrease the exposwe of the reference
strategy to that underlymg strategy and vice versa. The future realised volatility of the underly ing strateoy might differ
firom the historical realised volatility of that underlying strategy and as such, the weight of the underbymg strategy and
the performance af the referance strategy might be different if it was calculated based on the future realized volatility
rather than the historical realised volatility.

Investiments in the reference strategy might be subject to dilution, such that the mterests i those mvestmenls migil
be limited and might be subject to dilution if the reference velatility as specified in the relevant underlying strategy
supplemsent exceeds the volatility target, such that investors in products linked to the reference strategy might not
bemefit fully from mcreases in the value of the underdy mg strategy. Dilution means that the retum or loss on an
inwvestmett is subject to a multiplier decreasing exposure to such investment and reducing the volatility and risk of
loes should the vahue of such mvestment decling, but reducing the petential gain should the value of such inmvestment
increase, Investors should be aware that if the valee of the underlyving strategy of the reference siralegy moreases or
decreases, an investment linked 1o the reference sirategy might not have the samne magniude of increased or decreased
value a5 the wnderty mg strategy of the reference strategy.

-
The Class Fumd is exposed to eredit risk, which is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial
loss for the other party by failng o dischange an obligation.

I
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The main concentration to which the Class Fund is exposed arises from the Class Fund's investments in debt securities.
The Class Fund is also exposed to coumterparty credit nisk on trading denivative products, cash and cash equivalents
and other receivable balances. The Class Fund seekis to mitigate its exposure to credit risk by placing its cash balances
arid transaeting ils securities activily with large Grane isl instBuions.

The Class Fund invests @ debt instraments and the niles-based indexed steategy iz also egposed 1o deld instinaments,
In the event that an isae gees into defaull or is lkely to go to default, the price of such issuer’s seouritics fluctuate, The
Tszuer has mvested its issuance proceeds mto its underly me assets, meludmg senior bonds issued by The Goldman Sachs

Group Ine. and perfommance-lieked securities issved by Goldman Sache Finance Corp International meheding sbatitute
assets replacing such securities in the event of, or if there is a possibility of, early redemption, termination, an event of
defimlt, 3 write down of restructuning or a tax evenl. The nofes are issued by Gobdman Sachs Financial Products 2008 and
guaranteed by The Goldmamn Sachs Group Inc. I ihe creditwonhiness of underlying assels or the Guarantor were to decline
significantly due to, among others, deterioration in porfonmance or poor managemmt performance, or i it were to go
bankrupt, the Net Asset Value per Unit could be significantly affecied and declawe significanily.

Portfodio by ratmg category for each class of debi securities is as follows:

Bay 31, 2023 Mlay 31, 2022
% af 2 of
—FalrValge  Portfolic ___ Fair Value  FPorifolie
Structured Note
Mo raling 5 13,634,614 1000, & 15355624 100,007

5 1LE634614 100.0M% 5 15.385.624  100.00%

All tranzactions are seftled/paid for upon delivery using approved brokers. The risk of default i= considered minimeal,
as delivery of securitics sold is only made ance the broker has received pavment. Pavment i made on a purchase once
ihe securitics have been received by the broker. The trade will fual if either pasty fails 1o meet iis obligation.

The Class Fund measures credit risk and expected credil losses using probability of default, exposure o default and
loss given default. Management considers both historical analvsis and forward-looking information m detenmining
any expected credit loss. Management considers the probability of default 1o be remote as the druchred noles are
guaanieed by the Goldman Sachs Group Ine, with a S&P credit ratmg of BBB+ for long-term debl, As a result, ne loss
allowance has been recognised based on 12-month expected credit losses a8 aw such enpairment would be whally
imsignificant to the Class Fund

In accordance wath the Class Fund's policy, the Investment Manager momtors the Class Funds credit pesition on a
daily basis,

joidiey risk:
Liguidity risk is the risk that the Class Fund may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to seiile its
obligations in full as they fall due or can only do so on terms that are materially disadvantageous.

alfa
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Laguidity riek(comtined):

In the event of market tummoil or a significant deterioration in the creditwothmess of Bsuers or ofher similar sitations,
liquidity of the structured notes may be sgmificantly lodt and the sale price of the structured notes may deviate from the
prices generally expected, cousmg significant decresse of the MNel Asset Value per Unt and bosses of mvestors, In addition,
i e event that e eredit Fisk of he e matermlizes, the structired notes mzv ool be disposed and therefore the
Investment Manager may cease accepting repurchase requests for Units.

Participatmg Units are redeermed on demand at the option of the unithelder, However, the Trustes does not foresee
that thiz contractual meaturaty dizclosed will be representative of the acteal cash outflows. sz holders of these
instruments typically retain ihem for e medium to long teom.

Asat May 31, 2023, all other hiabilities of the Class Fund had a contractual maturity of less than one month, The
Investment Manager mositors the Class Fund "s liquidity position on an ongoing basis.

Custody risk; o
The Class Fund may invest directly or mdirectly, in markets where custodial and/'or settlement sy stems are not fully
developed. The assets of the Class Fund which are traded m such markets, and which have been entrusted to sub-
cuslodias, in ercurmstances where the ige of sich sub-custodans s necessary, iy be exposed Lo centam risks. Such
risks inclhude, but are not lamited to, a non-true delivery versus payment settlesient, a physical market, and as a
consequence the circulation of forged securities, poor infomeation in regards to corporate actions, registration process
that mpacts the avalability of the securities, lack of appropriste legal'Tiscal mfrestructure and kck of
compensation/risk fund with a central depository,

The Class Fund mainlams a custody account with its prime broker amd pramary custodian, Mizuho Bank (USA),
(“Mizhe™), Alihough the Trustee monitors Mizuho, and believes that they are appropriate custodinns, there s ne
guarantee that Mizuho, or any other custodian that the Clags Fusid mav use from time to time, will ot become insolvent,
While both the 1.5, Bankruptcy Code and the Securities Investor Protection Act of 1970 zeck to protect customer
property in the event of a failure, msolvency or liguidation of a broker-dealer, there §s no certainty that, in the event
of a fubure of abroker-dealer that has custody of Class Fund assets, the Class Fund would not meour losses due to is
assels being unavailable for a period of time, ultimately less than full recovery of its assels, or both. Becase
substantially all of the Class Fund's asseis are custodied with ene custodian, such losses could be sigmficant and could
meaterially impair the ability of the Class Fund to achieve its imvestment objective.

Far Value Dis¢losures:

In accordance with IFRS 13, the Class Fund is required to classify fair vahie measrements using a fair value hicrarchy
that reflects the significance of the mputs used inmaking the measurements. The fair value hicrarchy has the following
levels:

= Quoted prices (unadpsted) in active markets for identical assets o labilities (level 1)

= Inputs other than quoted prices inchuded within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, &s prices) or indirectty (that is, derived from prices) (level 21
Inguiis for the asset or liability that are not based on cbeervable marked data (that is, unobservable mputs) (level
£l

= |-
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The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value messurement is categorized in ils entirety i determined
oni the basis of the lowest level mpuot that 15 stenificant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. For this purpose,
the significance of an input is assessed apanst the fair value measurement m its entirety, I 3 far value measirement
uses obaervable mputs that require significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that measurement is a level
3 measwrement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value meaamremenl i its entirety requires
Judgment, considering factors spegific to the asset or lability.

The determination of what constitutes *observable’ requires significant judgment by the Class Fund, The Class Fund
considers observable data 1o be that market data that is readily available, regularty distributed or updated, relisble and
verifiable, not proprigtary, and provided by indepenident sources that are actively invelved in the relevant market

As at May 31, 2023 and 2022, all the fnancial assets held at fair value through profil and loss were classified as level
3

Investments classified withn level 3 have significant unobservable mputs, as they trade mirequently or net a all. As
observable prices are ot available for these securitics, the Class Fuid has ueed valuation techmgises 1o derve the
fair value az at May 31, 2023 and 2022,

The following table inchidez a roll-forward of the amounts for the period from June 1, 2022 to May 31, 2023 for
investments classified within Level 3. The classification of an investment within Level 3 iz based upon the significance
of the unchservable inputs to the overall fair value meassurement. However, Level 3 investments may include, in
addition to the use of unobservable inputs, observable inputs (that &, inputs that are actively quoted or can be validated
to market sources and data); accordingly, the gain and loss in the table below may include changes in fair value due
in part to changes in observable inputs that are part of the vakiation methodelogy .

For the For the
yeur ended yeur erded
Struciured Note Nlay 31, 2023 Mlay 31, 20022
Opening balance 5 153585624 -4 18,055,290
Proceeds from sale of Bvvestments i secumies {1, 638,603) (1,515, 20e%)
el losses recognied n fair value on financial
assels al fir vlaue through profit or loss iS?.‘}-iI:l ;I.!S&d-Ej
Closing balince £ 1, 635 614 w&
Unreaksed deprecialion on financial assels
ut fuir value through profit ar loss 5 (115,113 -1 (60.636)

There were no transfers between levels duning the vear.

The following table summarizes the quantitstive informmtion about the valuation techniques and wobservable inputs
used for Level 3 investments:
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ir Va
As of May 31, 2023
Falr Value Valaatlon Technigoe Unohservahle Inpuis Range
Structured node 5 154634604 Ciptien pricing mode] Valatility 13100
As of May 31, 2022
Fuir Value Valuaton Technigue Unobzarvable Inpais Bange
Structured node B OI5335624 Ciption pricing made] Valatility 3.3~7.0%

The irvestments in securities (“MNotes™) are issued by Goldman Sachs Financial Products 2018 and guaranteed by The
Goldman Sachs Group Inc.

Their price i3 shown a2 a dirty price and interest iz determined by the retum on the Reference Strategy which mtends
to adjust the level of volatility of the Goldman Sachs i-Select IV Series @6 USD Excess Retum Strategy {the
“Underlymg Strategy™) by rebatancmg the basket weight to the Underiving Strategy on a daily basis.

The value of the Underlying Strategy iz calculated based on the performance, calculated by the weighted average of
the value of each nsset.

The Noies provide a fixed and variable rate retum. The fixed rate coupon is based cn the market inderest rates and the
credit status of the 1ssuer of the Notes. The variable rabe coupos is based on the performance of the Underlving Strategy
index exeept that the vamable coupon rate canmiol be negative. As 8 resill, the variable rate coupon functions as a ¢all
prodection agamst negative retumns in the Uinderlying Strategy.

The valuation of the fixed retum portion of the Notes includes observable inputs (e.z, USD mterest rate, etc.). The
valuation of the variable rate portion of the Notes includes certain uncbservable inputz (volatility of the call option)
that when considered in totality, lead us to conchide that the Notes should be idemtified as level 3,

A change in each mput variable disclosed in the sbove will result in an increase or decrease in the far value of the
iy estment,

=8
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2023

8. Asseis and labilities not earried at fair value bul for ch fair value is disclosed

Investments are camied at far value. The camymg values of all other financial assats and liabilities are carried at
amortised cost; their carying values are a reasonsble approxEnation of fadr value.

Cash amd cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held with bank= and other short-tenm mvestmends in an active
miarket. Cash and cash equivalents have begn determined using level 1 inputs.

The puttable vahie of Participating Units is calculated based on the net difference between tolal assets and all other
liabilities of the Class Fund n accordamce with the Class Fund’s governing documents. These Participating Units are
not traded on an active market. A demaned feature 15 attached to these units, a5 they are redeemable at the holders®
optien and can be put back to the Class Fund at anv dealing date for cazh equal to a proportienate share of the Class
Fumd’s met asset value attributable to the Unit Class (Motes 2 and T).

2__Dusncial instruments by category
Finmnclal ssseis at
Finsncial asseis i falr vuloe throogh
May 51, 2025 amortis ed cost profit or less Total
Assels uv per siafemeni of Gnmcial position
Cash and cash equivalents 3 338,339 £ - S 338339
Fmancial asseis o farvakie Ihmug,]t prn!l—n orloss - 13,634,614 13,634 614
£ 338,339 % 13,634,614 H 13,07 053
Limbdlities ns per stntement of Bnanciad position
Investment management fee payvable 5 1,709 - - H 30,709
Audil fee payable 19,362 - 19,362
Admmistrtion fee puyable 17518 - 17518
Custody fee payahle 2,908 - 2508
Manager fee payahle 13454 - 13484
Trustee fee payable 2341 - 2341
Agent fee payable 3013 = 3.013
Distributor fee payable 507 - 2507
Cther fee payahle 4816 - 4,816
Met assels attrbutable to Untgholders 13 845 268 - 13 855 208
£ 13972953 £ - % 13,972,953
a9
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9. mancial instruments by eategol inu

Finamcial sxsets a
Finsnclal sssets st falr valoe threugh

May 31, 2022 st s ed cost profit o logs Tatal
Asseix us per statement of linmmcia positdon
Cash and cash equivalents £ 322607 £ - £ 322607
Founcinl assets at far valee through profit or loss = 15355624 15,355,624
H 332607 £ 15358 624 5 15,678,231
Linbilities as per sisntement of Bnancial position
Investment management fee payvable £ KT AR £ - 5 36,044
Aundit fee payable 17618 x 17618
Administraiion fee payable 19133 - 19,133
Trustee fee payable 17.931 - 17.531
Manager fee payable 13.63% . 13,638
Agent fee payable 5,200 - 5,200
Custady fee pavable 3467 - FA6T
Dastrbuter fee payable 2666 - 2666
Cther fee payahblk 1533 - L1333
Wet nssets attnbutable to Unigholders 15,551,001 - 15,551,001
- 15,678,231 £ = 5 15,678,231
10, Commitments

in the normal course of business, the trustee and/or Manager (“Management™) en behalf of the Trust enters
into contracts that contain a vanety of representations and warrantiez and which provide general
indemnifications. Management's meccemum exposure under these amangements is unknown, as this would
mvolve future claims that may be made against Management that have not vt oocurmed, however, based on
expenience. Management expects the risk of loss to be remote.

11. Subs el s

From Juse 1, 2023 throegh Awgust 29, 2023, there were subscriptions and redemptions of SNil and $139,773,
respectively.

Subsequent events were evakuated through August 20, 2023, the date the finmcial statements were availsble 1o be
wesned, and there were no subsequent events that require adjustment to, or disclosure i, the fovancial statements.
However, at this time, the Trust is unable to reasonably estimate the impact on its future fnancial statemnents.

==
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SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (UNALUDITED)

AS AT MAY 31, 2023
AMORTIZED FAIR "% OF
QUANTITY SECTRITY DFS CRIFTION COST VALUE NET ASSETS
STRUCTUREDR NOTES
13860000 Gokdman Sachs FP 2018, 1.73000°6

due Apel 30, 2024 5 13749727 § 13,634,614 98 40P

13,749,727 13,634,614 SH.4Pe

TOTAL VALUE OF INVES TMENTS 5 13, 749727 13,634,614 98 4P

OTHER ASSETS NET OF LIABILITIES 220,654 1.60%%

NET ASSETS S 13855208 100, 00P
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2023

13,967,606.91 2,089,274,642

181,198.69 27,103,700

13,786,408.22 2,062,170,942

137,067

100.58 15,045
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2023 2,000,000 9,916
10,000,000 2,000,000
2023 6,311,934 4,414
One
2023 20 350

500
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131

23 103

2023 29

149.58

2023 10
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2022 2021 12 31

2022 2021
6,018,277 900,214 7,747,717 1,158,904
416,812 62,347
419,477 62,745 599,076 89,610
11,049 1,653 12,287 1,838
84,938 12,705 56,793 8,495
6,533,741 977,317 8,832,685 1,321,193
94,706 14,166 136,966 20,487
6,628,447 991,483 8,969,651 1,341,680
3,183,319 476,161
462,677 69,207 434,514 64,995
208,201 31,143 364,045 54,454
670,878 100,350 3,981,878 595,609
2,000,000 299,160 2,000,000 299,160
3,957,569 591,973 2,987,773 446,911
5,957,569 891,133 4,987,773 746,071
6,628,447 991,483 8,969,651 1,341,680
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2022 2021 12 31
2022 2021

22,385 3,348 41,671 6,233
22,385 3,348 41,671 6,233
4,775,820 714,367 4,697,515 702,654
212,503 31,786 221,622 33,150
38,400 5,744 38,400 5,744
5,026,723 751,897 4,957,537 741,548
5,049,108 755,246 4,999,208 747,782
2,663,914 398,468 2,646,420 395,852
1,008,720 150,884 1,006,565 150,562
361,491 54,072 361,491 54,072
44,638 6,677 42,629 6,376
549 82 10,000 1,496
4,079,312 610,183 4,067,105 608,358
969,796 145,062 932,103 139,424
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2022 2021 12 31
2,000,000 299,160 3,255,670 486,983 5,255,670 786,143
932,103 139,424 932,103 139,424
(1,200,000) (179,496) (1,200,000) (179,496)
2,000,000 299,160 2,987,773 446,911 4,987,773 746,071
969,796 145,062 969,796 145,062
2,000,000 299,160 3,957,569 591,973 5,957,569 891,133
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2022 2021 12 31

2022 2021
969,796 145,062 932,103 139,424
44,638 6,677 42,629 6,376
1,014,434 151,739 974,732 145,800
416,812 62,347 682,458 102,082
179,599 26,864 (155,559) (23,269)
1,238 185 837 125
(28,145) (4,210) 5,735 858
(3,183,319) (476,161) (2,269,012) (339, 399)
28,163 4,213 (71,711) (10,727)
(155,844) (23,311) 118,434 17,715
(1,727,062) (258,334) (714,086) (106,813)
(2,378) (356) (23,035) (3,446)
(1,200,000) (179,496)
(1,729,440) (258,690) (1,937,121) (289,755)
7,747,717 1,158,904 9,684,838 1,448,658
6,018,277 900,214 7,747,717 1,158,904
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2022 2021 12 31

1990 15

2009 2014
2014

2031
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IFRS 2022 2021 12 31

2022 2021 12 31

16 12
2022 2021 12 31

12
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2022 2021
1,918,277 3,247,717
4,100,000 4,500,000
6,018,277 7,747,717
2022 2021 12 31
2022 2021
325,292 469,711
94,185 129,365
419,477 599,076
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2022 2021
5,057 25,716
53,240 75,730
21,513 76,634
79,810 178,080

2022 2021
(549) (10,000)
549 10,000

2022 2021
3,183,319
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2020 12 31 767,980 372,854 1,140,834
23,035 23,035

2021 12 31 791,015 372,854 1,163,869
2,378 2,378

2022 12 31 793,393 372,854 1,166,247
2020 12 31 682,667 301,607 984,274
26,243 16,386 42,629

2021 12 31 708,910 317,993 1,026,903
28,252 16,386 44,638

2022 12 31 737,162 334,379 1,071,541
2021 12 31 82,105 54,861 136,966
2022 12 31 56,231 38,475 94,706

2022 2021
10,000,000
2,000,000 2021 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
2022 12 31

2021 1,200,000
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Tilly Nominees Limited Coultry Directors Ltd
Tilly Nominees Limited Tilly Directors Limited Tilly
Secretaries Limited Nominee

(Trust) Companies

2022 2021
Tilly Nominees Limited 100 100
Coultry Directors Ltd 100 100
Tilly Directors Limited 100 100
Tilly Secretaries Limited 100 100
2022 12 31 975,610 2021 975,610
2022 2021
12 31
416,812
4,936 987
760,884
22,727 3,932
12 31
238,600 238,600
30,961 25,000
361,491 361,491
2022 2021 12 31
2011 31

10
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2022 12 31
143,920

53.97 2021 47.76
2022 2021
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2022
2021 12 31
2022
0.03 1.4 1,918,277 4,100,000 6,018,277
419,477 419,477
11,049 11,049
2,348,803 4,100,000 6,448,803
462,677 462,677
462,677 462,677
1,886,126 4,100,000 5,986,126
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2021
0.01 0.05 3,247,717 4,500,000 7,747,717
5.26 416,812 416,812
599,076 599,076
12,287 12,287
4,275,892 4,500,000 8,775,892
0.005 0.01 3,183,319 3,183,319
434,514 434,514
3,617,833 3,617,833
658,059 4,500,000 5,158,059
2022 12 31 30 2021 30
5,755 2021 1,444
30 2021 30
30 5,755 2021 1,444
2022 12 31 30 2021 30
12,300 2021 13,500
30 2021 30
30 12,300 2021 13,500
2022 2021 12 31 30
2021
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2022 2021 12 31
2022 2021 12 31
2022 12 31
2021
54,556 54,556
10 2022 12 31
2021 5,456
12
2021
13
15
2022 2021 12 31
400,000 500,000
2022 2021 12 31
14
2023
15
2022
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

December 31, 2022 and 2021

fexprezsed in Unifed Stales dollars)

2022 2021
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalants (Mote 3) § BD018.277 $ rTATTIT
Due from clients (Mote ) - 416,812
Clhent accounts nacevabla (Note 4) 419,477 589,076
Other receivables 11,049 12,287
Prepald expenses 84,338 56,793
6,533,741 8,832 685
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed assets (Mote 6) 94,706 135 966
§ 6628447 %  B.969851
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Depositors’ accounts (Notes 5 and 9) $ - $ 3183319
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (Note &) 462,677 434 514
Feis recaived in advance 208,201 364,045
670,878 3,081,878
SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
Share capital (Note T) 2,000,000 2,000,000
Retained eamings 3,957,669 2,987,773
5,957,568 4,987,773
§ B B28.447 $ 8,969,651

See noles lo consolidated financial staterments
Page 3
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive

Income
for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
fexpressad in Unifed Stales dollars)

2022 2021
INTEREST INCOME 7 22 385 5 41,871
INTEREST EXPENSE L -
MET INTEREST INCOME 22,385 41,671
OTHER INCOME
Directorship, trustes and management fees (Nate 8) 4,775,820 4,697 515
Miscallansous 212,503 221,822
Rental income 38,400 38,400
5,026,723 4 857 537
TOTAL INCOME 5,048,108 4,999,208
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salanes and benefits (Note 10) 2,663,914 2,646,420
Administration (Note 9} 1,008,720 1,008,585
Rent expense (Mote 8} 361,49 361,491
Depreciation (Note &) 44,638 42 629
Expacted cradit loss (Note 4) 548 10,000
4.079,312 4 067 105
MNET INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 5 968,786 ] 932,103

See noles lo consolidated financial staterments
Page 4
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in

Shareholders’ Equity
for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
fexprassad in Unifed Stales dollars)

Total
Retained sharaholder's
Share capital earmings equity
Balanca at Decamber 31, 2020 $ 2000000 § 3255870 § 5255670
Met income and comprehensive income - 932,103 232,103
Dividends (Note 7) = (1,200,000 {1,200,000)
Balance at December 31, 2021 2,000,000 2087773 4 987,773
Met income and comprehensive income - 969,795 968,706
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 2000000 $ 3957569 $ 5957560

See noles lo consolidated financial staterments
Page 5
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
fexpressed in Unifed Stales dollars)

2022 2024
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN):
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Met income and comprehensive income $ 969,796 3 932,103
Adjustments for items not affecting cash:
Depreciation 44 638 42 529
1,014,434 974,732
Changes in operating assels and liabilities:
Due from clients 416,812 682,458
Client accounts receivable 179,599 (155,558)
Other receivables 1,238 83T
Prepaid expenses {28,145) 5,735
Depositors’ accounls (3,183,318) {2,269,012)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 28,163 {71,711}
Fees received in advance {155,844) 118,424
[1,727,062) {714,086)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assats {2,378) {23 035)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid - {1,200,000)
MET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {1,729,440) (1,937,121)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGIMNNING OF YEAR 7,747,717 9,684,838
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR § 6018277 §  TR4TTIT

See noles lo consolidated financial staterments
Page 6
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars)

1. THE COMPANY ANDITS PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Lid. (the "Company”) was incorporated under the laws of the
Cayman Islands on June 15, 1990 as Queensgate Bank & Trust Company Lid, ("QBTC") and is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Queensgate Group Lid. (the *Parent”), a company also incorporated in the
Cayman |slands.

On January 2, 2009, QBTC undertook a restructuring in order to separate the banking activities from
the trust activities. Subsequently, on January 1, 2014, the Company undertook a merger to re-combine
the bank and the trust activities, On January 2, 2014, the Company changed its name to Queensgate
Bank and Trust Company Lid. The newly named company continued as the entity formerly named
Queensgate Trust Company Lid. and is licensed with a Class B Banking license, a Trust Company
icense and Mulual Fund Administration license with the Cayman Istands Monetary Authonty ("CIMA™).

The Company has received an undertaking from the Cayman Islands Government exempling it from all

local income, profits and capital gains taxes until February 1, 2031, Mo such taxes exist in the Cayman
Islands at the present ime,

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consobdated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFRS") and reflect the following policies:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

+ has power over the investee;
+ s exposed, or has nghts, to varable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
+ has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether of nol it conlfals an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Caonsolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obitains control over the subsidiary and ceases
whan the Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, incorme and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income from the date the Company gains confrol until the date when the Company ceases to control
the subsidiary.

All significant intercompany fransactions and balances have been eliminated on consolidation, Refer to
Mate 8 for other disclosures relating to the subsidianes,

Page 7
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars) (continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (confinued)

Use of estimates

Financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS require management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and Eabilities and disclosure of contingent assels
and Eabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expense
during the reporting perod, Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and short-term deposits with an onginal matunty of three
months ar less.

Due from clients

Due from clients are temporary overdrafts given to clients for which the carrying value approximates
fair value as such amounts bear interest at varable rates, Due from clients are recorded net of a
provision for expected credit losses.

Client accounts receivable and allowance for doubtful accounts

Client accounts receivable includes fee income receivables generated from the Company's
directorship, trustee and management fees and receivables for disbursements made on behalf of
clents. Fee income receivables are stated net of a provision Tor expected credit losses, Receivables
for disbursements made on behall of clients do not have a related provision for expected eredit losses
as these balances typically represent unbifed disbursements that the Company expects (o recover
once billad.

The provision for expected credit losses is established by charges to income baged on the expected
credif losses in receivable balances, These are based upon management’s knowledge of the current
condition of the Company’s clients.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars) (continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (confinued)

Fixed assets

Fixed assels are stated at cost less accumulated depredation. Deprediation is calculated using the
straight-line method and is based on the estimated lives as follows:

Furniture and computer equipment 3to 15 years
Motor vehicles 8 years

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amount of its fixed assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have sulfered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assetis estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (f any). For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company has
ned identified any assels for which an impairment loss was recorded.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
for all interest beaning instruments on an accrual basis using the effective yvield method.

Revenue recognition
The Company recognises revenue from the following sources:

« directorship, trustee, management and other similar services provided to clients;

+ miscellaneous services provided to clients and disbursement charges for services provided to
clents in connection with the directorship, trustee and management services being pravided,
and

= rental income for use of its office space.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration thal the Company is conltracted to receive from ils
chients and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Company recognises revenues
on an accrual basis as performance obligations are satisfied.

The primary source of revenue for the Company is from the provision of directorship, trustee,
management, and registered office services to its chents. For these services, the Company recognises
revenues over the contracted period of service which coincides with a calendar year. Where multiple

senvices are provided o a single client, the revenues generated from each lype of service are
recognised separately.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars) (continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuad)
Revenue recognition (confinued)

tiscellansows income includes disbursement fees charged to clients for the Company's overhead and
fees charged to clients for miscellaneous senvices such as copy services for meatings or courier costs.
Desbursement fee revenue is charged based on a percentage of the contracted revenue for directorship,
trustee, management and other similar services and is recognised in the same pattern as the revenues
for those services. Fees charged to dients for miscellaneous semnvices are recognised in revenue at the
point in time in which they are provided.

The Company records renfal income from leasing out their office space to third parties. The rental
income is earned and recognised on a month to month basis and is not based on a contract.

Foreign currency transiation

The Company's presantation currancy is the United States dollar. Assets and liabilities denominated or
accounted for in currencies other than United States dollars have been translated info United States
dollars at the applicable exchange rates ruling at the statement of financial position date. Forelgn curmency
transactions and income and expense items have been franslated at the exchange rates existing at the
time of the transaction. Gains and losses ansing from transkation are included in the consolidated
slaternents of comprehensive income.

Assetls under administration

Securnities, cash and other assets held on behalf of clients in a trust, agency or Aduciary capadity are not
incheded in these consolidated financial statements as such assets are not the property of the Company.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilties are recognised in the Company’s statemeant of financial positicn
when the Company becomes a parly to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Finandal assets
and financial iabilities are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amorised cost
or subsequently measured at fair value depending on their cash flow characterstics. Due to the short
term nature of the financial assels and abiliies held by the Company, carrying value approximates fair
value,

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
of it transfers the fnancial asset and substantially all of the fsks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to anather entity. Financial Rabilities are derecognised when tha Company's obligations are discharged,
cancelled, or they expire,

With IFRS 9, the principle applied for the impairment of accounts receivable is based on expected credit
losses. No provision for expected credit losses was recorded for the year ended December 31, 2022
and 2021,
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars) (continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (confinued)

Fiduciary activities

The Company, in its fiduciary capacity, may be a party to litigation and claims in the normal course of
business. In the opimon of the Directors, which is based on the advice from the Company's lnwyears, no
provisions are required at December 31, 2022 and 2021,

Leases

Under IFRS 16 Leases, a lessee recognizes assets and Babilities for all lease amangements unless the
termis 12 months or less o the underlying asset has a low value, Due o the short term nature of the one
lease contract (Mote 9) existing as at and duning the years ended Decemnber 31, 2022 and 2021, the
Company has recorded the month to month lease costs as rent expense on the consclidated statements
of carmprehansive income.

New and revised IFRS standards in izsue but not yet effective

The Company has reviewed the IFRS standards that have been issued but are not yet effective and
has concluded that they will not have a material impact on the financial statements in future pericds.

Critical accounting judgement and key source of estimation uncertainfy

The Company makes estimales and assumplions that affect the reported amounts of assets and labilities.
Estimates are continually evaluated and based on histonical experence and other factors including
expectations of fulure events that are believed 1o be reasonable under the crcumstances. The key areas
of judgemeant or estimation are with regard to the expected useful economic lives of fixed assets as well
as the recoverability of client accounts recevable frorm clients and due from clients, The expected useful
economic ves of fived assels are based on prior experience of similar assats, Chent accounts receivable
and due from cients are measured as either a 12 month or lifetime ECL based on credit risk
considerations,

3. CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2022 2021

Call deposits $ 1818277 § 3247717
Shorl-lerm fixed deposits 4 100,000 4,500,000
§  Bo0ig277 8 TTATTIT

Short-lerm fixed deposits as at December 31, 2022 and 2021 mature within three months fromithe ariginal
issued date.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars) (continued)

4, CLIENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Amounts receivable in respect of fee income eamed by the Company or disbursements made on behalf
of clients are comprised as follows:

—_—20ee 2021

Fee income receivablas g 325,292 5 469,711
Recevables for disbursements made on behalf of clients 94,185 129,365
Less: provision for expecied credil losses = =

3 419,477 5 599,076

Fee income recaivables include amounts that are past due at the end of the reporting period for which
the Company has not recognised a provision for expected credit losses as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and amounts are still considered recoverable. In determining the
recoverability of the fee income receivables, the Company considers any change in the credit quality
of the receivables from the date the credit was initially granted up to the end of the reporting period.

Age of fee income receivables that are past due but not impaired

2022 2021
81 to 180 days $ 5,057 ] 25,716
181 to 360 days 53,240 75,730
Crver 360 days 21,513 76,634
Total - past due but not impaired 5 79,810 b 178,080
Mowvaments in the provision for expected credit losses were as follows:
2022 2021
Balance at beginning of year ] - 3 -
Impairment losses reversed - -
Amounts written off during the year as uncollectible (548) {10,000}
Increase in provision 543 10,000
Balance at end of year -3 - 3 -

To reduce exposure to credit risk, the Company reviews the credit quality of its custormers and defines
credit imits as part of its onboarding process, Credit quality and limits of the receivables portfalio are
reviewed on an ongeing basis throughout the year.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

fexpressed in Unifed Stales dollars) (continued)

5. DEPOSITORS' ACCOUNTS

Depositors’ accounts are classified as follows:

2022 _ 2o
Call deposits 5 - § 3,183,319

6. FIXED ASSETS

Furniture and

computer
aquipment Motor vehicles Total

Cost

Balance at December 31, 2020 5 7E7.880 % 372854 § 1,140,834
Additicns 23,035 . 23,035
Balance at Decembear 31, 2021 791,015 72,854 1,163,860
Additicns 2378 = 2378
Balance at December 31, 2022 793,303 372,854 1,166,247
Balance at December 31, 2020 682,667 0,807 984,274
Depreciation expensea 26,243 16,386 42 629
Balance at December 31, 2021 708,810 317,933 1,026,803
Depreciation expense 28,252 16,386 44 838
Balance at December 31, 2022 T3r. 162 334,378 1,071,541
Net book value, December 31, 2021 3 B2106 5 54881 3 136,965
Met book value, December 31, 2022 3 56231 3§ 3BATS 5 94,706
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars) (continued)

7. SHARE CAPITAL

_ 0er 200
Authorized;
10,000,000 Crdinary voting shares of $1 par value each

Ispued;
2,000,000 Ordinary voting shares (2021: 2,000,000) £ 2000000 § 2,000,000

The Directors may declare dividends and distributions on shares in issue and authorise payment of the
dividends or distibutions out of the funds of the Company. Mo dividend or distribution shall be paid
excepl out of the realised or unrealised profits of the Company. For the year ended
December 31, 2022, no dividend was declared and paid (2021: $1,200,000). The rights conferred upon
the holders of the shares of any class issued with preferred or other rights shall not, unless otherwise
expressly provided by the terms of issue of the shares of that class, be deemed to be varied by the
creation or issue of further shares ranking pari passu therewith.

8. SUBSIDIARIES

The consobdated financial staterments inclede the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, Tilly Mominees Limited and Coultry Directors Ltd., and Tilly Nominees Limited, in turn, is
parent to two wholly-owned subsidianies, Tilly Directors Limited and Tilly Secretanes Limited {collectively,
the “Subsidiaries”). All of the subsidiaries listed below are icensed as Mominee (Trust) Companies with

CiniA.

Placa of Proportion of ownership

Principal incorparation interest and voting power

Name of subsidiany activity and operation held by the Company

2022 2021

Provide nominee

Tilty Nominees Limited  shareholder services Cayman Islands 100% 100%
Provide corporale

Coultry Directors Lid director sarvices Cayman lslands 100% 100%
Provide corporale

Tilly Directors Limited director sarvices Cayman lslands 100% 100%
Pravide company

Tilly Secretaries Limited sacretary services Cayman Islands 10:0% 100%

The Company has not provided financial support to its Subsidiaries during the year, nor does it intend to
provide financial or other suppert. There are no significant restrictions on the Company’s ability to access
or use assets or settle Fabilities of the Subsidianes.

As of December 31, 2022, guaranteas in the total amount of $975,610 (2021: 5975 ,610) have been issued
by the Company to the Government of the Cayman Iskands on behalf of its Subsidiaries.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars) (continued)

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Included in the consolidated financial statements are the following related party balances and

transachons:
2022 2021
As of December 31:
Due from clients - 416,812
Client accounts recaivable 4938 887
Depositors’ accounts - 760,884
Agcounts payable and accrued expenses 22727 3,832
r n mber 31:
Dirsctorship, trustse and managemaent feas 238,800 238,600
Directors' fees (included in Administration expensges) 30,961 25,000
Rant axpanse 381,491 361,491

All transactions with related parties are conducted on normal commercial terms and at non-preferential
interest rates.

Centain employees of the Company and ceftain assets of the Company are also uliised by the Parent
for its ongoing operations. The employees’ services and use of the assets is currently not recharged lo
thie Parent and is not separately quantifiable.

Some of the Company's employesas alsa provided directorship semvices to a number of clients who had
deposits and overdrafts with the Company during the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021.

The Company leases office space from a related party. The annual lease expired on
August 31, 2011, The Company is currently leaging the space on a month to month basis based on the
prior lease agreement.

10. PENSION PLAN

The Company has a defined contribution pension scheme in place for all of its qualifying employees.
Contributions are calculated as a percentage of salary based on the prescribed maximum of 5% and
are matched by the Company. The Company pays the employeas’ portion. The total pension cost
recognised during the year ended December 31, 2022 was 5144,360 (2021: $143,520) and is included
in salanes and benefits in the consolidated statements of comprehensive INCOMe.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars) (continued)

11. RISK MANAGEMENT

A financial instrement is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of cne entity and a financial liability
of another entity. The Company enters into contracts invalving financial instruments during the normal
course of its business.

Risk exposures arising from financial instruments are monitored by managemeni. The main nisks
arising from the Company's financial instruments are credit and counterparty risk, liquidity risk, market
risk, interest rate risk and cumency risk. The exposure to. and management of, these risks is
summarnsed below. The year-end figures reperted in these consolidated financial statements for
financial instruments are reflective of the position held throughout the year and are consistent with the
objectives, policies and strategies approved by management.

Credit and counterparty risk

Credit and counterparty risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss
foor the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. Financial instruments which potentially expose
the Company 1o credit and counterparty risk consist prmarily of cash and cash equivalents, due from
clents and client accounts receivable.

The Campany manages its expaosure (o credit and counterparty risk by placing cash and fived deposils
with a regulated financial instifufion in the Cayman Islands, only taking referred business, and
moniftoring outstanding receivable balances, as discussed in Note 4.

The Company has a concenfration risk with all cash and cash equivalents being held by cne financial
instituticn in the Cayrman |slands.

Dwuring the year ended December 31, 2022, approximately 53.97% (2021: 47.76%) of the Company's
directorship, trustee and management fees were earned from its three (2021: three) largest customers.
Mo other customers contributed more than 10% to the Company's directorship, trustee and
management fees during 2022 or 2021,

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Campany will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial iabilities.

The Company's objective is to maintain depositors’ accounts which hawve a range of maturities
consistent with its asset base. Liquidity rrsk s monftored by the Company's managemeant to ensuna
that the Company has sufficient Bquid assets to be able to meet its future expected cash cutllows. The
Company endeavors to match the terms of its iabiities and assats, primarily cash and cash equivalents,
fixed deposits and the depositors’ accounts, and maintains a significant proportion of its assets in cash
in order to manage iquidity nsk. Refer to interest rate risk table disclosures for analysis of liquidity gap.

Market risk
Market nisk iz the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate

because of changes in market prices. Market risk for the Company comprises inferest rate risk and
currency sk,
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars) (continued)

11. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate fsk is the fsk thal the fair value or future cash flows of a inancial instrument will luctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The Company manages its interest rate risk by ensunng that the interest rate on assats (Le. cash and
due from clients) equals or exceeds that of the relevant offsetting liability {j.e. depositors’ accounts).
The tables below summarise this matching as of December 31, 2022 and 2021. Items are allocated fo
time bands by reference to the earlier of the next interest rate re-pricing date and the maturity date.

20220
Effective
Interest
Rate Less than  Greater than
ar £ On demand 3 months 3 moenths Taital
Monetary Assats:
Cash and cash equivalanis 00314 § 1918277 3% 4,100,000 5 = & 6MMB2TT
Due from clients . - . - .
Client accounts receivable - 415,477 - 419477
Other recervablas - 11,048 - 11,048
5 zlmma * 4,100,000 5 - }ME
Monetary Lisbiities:
Depositors’ accounts - 5 - 8 - 8 - %
Agcounts payable and accrued
SAPENSES - 462 577 = - AE2BTT
§ 462677 § - 3 - 5 482677
Sensitivityliquidity gap § 1,886,126 ¥ 4,100,000 % - 5 5986126
Page 17
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars) (continued)

11. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)
2021:
Effective
Interest
Rarter Less than Greater than
or Range (%) _ On demand 1 months 1 manths Total
Monetary Assets:
Cash and cash squivalents o005 § 3247717 § 4500000 3§ - & THMTTT
Due frem clients 526 416,812 - - 416812
Client scoounts recedvabie - 588,076 - - 598,076
Odher receivables . 12287 - - 12287
§ 4275807 § 4500000 % . % BTT5R07
Monatary Liabilities:
Depasitors’ accounts 0005001 5 3183316 % - 5 - 5 3EMe
Accounts payable and accrued § 434,514 5 434514
§ 3617833 § - 5 - 617,
Sensitivityliquidity gap 5 BER050 & 4500000 & . i ]

The Company is exposed to nsks associated with the effects of fluctuations in prevailing levels of fived
and floating interest rates on its cash flows.

At December 21, 2022, with respect to the floating rate exposure, if market inferest rates had been 30
(2021: 300 basis points higher with all other variables held constant, shareholder's equity would have
been $5,755 lower (2021: 51,444 lower). If market interest rates had been 30 (2021 30) basis points
loweer with all other variables held constant, shareholder's equity would have increased by less than
£5 755 lower (2021: would have increased by less than 51,444) due Lo the fact that certain account
balances earn interest at a lower rate lower than 30 basis points.

At December 31, 2022, with respect to the fixed rale exposure, if market interest rates had been 30
(2020 30) basiz points higher with all other variables held constant, =harehokder's equity would have
been 512,300 higher (2021: 513,500 higher). If market interest rates had been 30 (2021: 30) basis
points lower with all other vanables held constant, shareholder's equity would have decreased by less
than $12 300 (2021: would have decreased by less than $13 500) due to the fact thal certain aceaiint
balances earn interest at a rate lower than 30 basis points,

This analysis is based on interest beanng instruments held at year-and, and assumes the change in
interest rates took place at the beginning of the year and the interest beanng Instruments wera halkd
constant throughout the reporting pencd. Thirty basis points is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment
of the possible change in market rates for the years ended Decamber 31, 2022 and 2021.

Page 18
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars) (continued)

11. RISK MAMAGEMENT {continued)

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financlal instrument will flucluate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates.

The Company operates in the Cayman Islands, and mainly holds instruments with net exposures (o the
Cayman Islands dollar (2021: Great Brntain pound and Cayman Islands dollar). Since the Company
prepares its financial statements in United States dollars, the Company’s consolidated statements of
financial position are affected by movements in the exchange rate of various curencies agains! the
United States dollar. The Cayman Islands dollar has a fixed exchange rate against the United States
dellar. Translation gainsfosses ariging from these exposures are reported net in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income,

The table below shows the Company's cumency exposures being those transactional exposures that
give rise to the net currency gains and losses recognised in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income. Such exposures comprse the monetary liabilities of the Company that are not
denominated in either the presentation currency or a currency with a fixed rate of exchange to the
presentation cumency of the Company. To manage its currency risk, the Company may approximate
net foreign currency assets and liabilities against each other. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021,
these exposures were as lollows:

Significant net foreign currency monetary assets, December 31, 2022 and 2021 (ranslated into United
States dollars):

For the year ended December 31, 2022, no foreign currency assets or Babilities were held other than
the Cayman lslands dollar, which is pegaed to the United States dallar.

Page 19
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars) (continued)

11. RISK MAMAGEMENT {continued)

Currency risk (continued)
2021:
Met foreign
Cash and cash Depositors’  currency monetary
equivalents accounts asseals
GBP -] 54,556 § - & 54,556

Had the United States dollar been stronger or weaker by 10% against the relevant foreign currencies
with all other varables held constant, the net result for the year ended December 31, 2022 would
decrease of increasa by il (2021: 55 456).

12. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company manages its capstal to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to the sharehelder through the optimesation of the debt and equity
balance. The Company's overall sirategy remains unchanged from 2021,

The capital structure of the Company consists of issued Ordinary voting shares and retained eamings.
13. REGULATORY MATTERS

The Company is subject to regulatory capital requirements established by CIMA. Failure to meet
minimum capital requirements can inittate certain actions by the regulator that, if undertaken, could
have a direct matenal effect on the Company's consolidated finandal statements, Under capital
adequacy guidelines used by CIMA and prescribed under The Banks and Trust Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, the Company must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures
of the Company's assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatony
accounting practices. The Company’s capital amaunts and classification are also subject to qualitativa
Judgrments by CIMA about components and sk welghlings.

The Company Is required at all imes to maintain a capital adequacy ratio of at least 15% according to
current regulation and the provisions of its Banking lcense. The Company is in compliance with this
reguirement as at and for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021.

Under the terms of its licenses, the Company = required to maintain a minimum net worh of

KYD400,000 (LS5500,0000. The Company is in compiance with this requirement as at and for the
years ended Decamber 31, 2022 and 2021,

14. APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financal statements were approved by a committee of the Board of Directors and
authorized for issue on March 7, 2023
Page 20
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

fexpressed in Unifed Stales dollars) (continued)

15. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

The Company is in the process of surrendenng its Class B Banking license with CIMA in near future
and accordingly all the deposits balances were paid out during 2022,

Page 21
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2023 30

2023 30 2022 12 31
5,613,261 839,632 6,018,277 900,214
7,083 1,059 2,551 382
1,790,542 267,829 512,913 76,722
78,208 11,698 94,706 14,166
7,489,094 1,120,219 6,628,447 991,483
1,059,226 158,439 574,472 85,930
253,815 37,966 96,406 14,420
1,313,041 196,405 670,878 100,350

1.00 10,000,000

2,000,000 2,000,000 299,160 2,000,000 299,160
4,176,053 624,654 3,957,568 591,973
6,176,053 923,814 5,957,568 891,133

7,489,094 1,120,219 6,628,447 991,483
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2023 30
2023 30 2022 12 31

50,502.59 7,554 22.385.06 3,348

50.502.59 7,554 22.385.06 3,348

2,394,316.49 358,142  4,775,271.32 714,285
19,200.00 2,872 38,400.00 5,744
100,500.38 15,033 212,503.29 31,786
2,564,519.46 383,601 5,048,559.67 755,164

180,745.50 27,036 361,491.00 54,072
1,130,519.10 169,103  2,091,948.00 312,914

73,119.15 10,937 144,359.53 21,593
177,459.90 26,544 351,477.69 52,574

39,326.82 5,883 76,127.70 11,387
12,500.00 1,870 27,025.00 4,042
115,211.37 17,233 222,080.49 33,219
45,050.00 6,739 86,833.83 12,989
18,020.00 2,695 21,200.00 3,171
69,862.17 10,450 145,234.00 21,724
11,897.32 1,780 10,943.44 1,637
983.28 147 2,245.86 336
20,215.87 3,024 54,726.37 8,186
24,596.27 3,679 47,230.90 7,065
2,873.08 430 5,630.63 842
8,941.07 1,337 15,573.45 2,329

80,559.67 12,050 167,713.33 25,087

14,875.00 2,225 29,750.00 4,450
10,637.50 1,591 32,449.50 4,854

156.93 23 4,271.01 639
3,166.82 474 7,830.50 1,171
12,500.00 1,870 30,961.13 4,631
5,570.09 833 11,209.57 1,677
11,098.35 1,660 13,398.32 2,004
13,988.43 2,092 36,465.23 5,454
19,790.91 2,960 44,637.68 6,677
17,370.72 2,598 35,949.53 5,377

2,121,035.32 317,264 4,078,763.69 610,101
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2023 30

2023 30 2022 12 31

443,484.14 66,336 969,795.98 145,062

3,957,568.49 591,973  2,987,772.51 446,911

(225,000.00)  (33,656)

4,176,052.63 624,654  3,957,568.49 591,973
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Independent auditor®s report

To FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as
trustee of USD Prime One Fund (5Y) 2019-04

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, inall material respects, the financial
position of USD Prime One Fund (5Y) 2019-04 (a series trust of DIAM Cayman Trust) (the Class Fund) as
at May 31, 2023, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards.

What we have audited

The Class Fund®s financial statements comprise:

e the statement of financial position as at May 31, 2023;

e the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
e the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

e the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (1SAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Class Fund in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (1ESBA Code) . We have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the 1ESBA Code.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to Notes 1 and 2 to these financial statements, which refer to the intention of the
management to terminate the Class Fund on May 10, 2024. These financial statements have therefore
been prepared using a liquidation basis of accounting. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.
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Other information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Annual
Report (but does not include the financial statements and our auditor®s report thereon).

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
amaterial misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibi lities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Class Fund®s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Class Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor®s responsibi lities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor"s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with I1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

184/189



EDINETOO OO
o o o o o o o o o o o e e =259
0000oo0ooooooooooog
e (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Class Fund"s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Class Fund"s ability to continue as a going
concern. ITwe conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor”s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor”s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Class Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other Matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for FirstCaribbean International
Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of the Class Fund in
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter and for no other purpose. We do not, ingiving this
opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this
report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in
writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

August 29, 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR*S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd.

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd. and its
subsidiaries (the "Company'), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at
December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in
shareholder®s equity and cash flows for the years then ended (all expressed in United States Dollars),
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, and its financial
performance, and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor®s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company*s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company*s financial reporting process.

Auditor®s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor®s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting fromerror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company®s internal control.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management”s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company®s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor”s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor®s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Deloitte & Touche LLP
March 7, 2023
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